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Former Kowloon
British School
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Located at 136 Nathan Road, the former Kowloon British School is a fine example of a Victorian style red-brick
building. Built in 1902, it is the oldest school building in Hong Kong constructed for the children of foreign nationals
that is still standing today. It was declared a monument on 19 July 1991. Over a century since its construction, this

monument has housed the Antiquities and Monuments Office.
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In the late 19th century, there was an increase in the number of
foreign nationals settling in Hong Kong. This immigration resulted in
the growing need of schools for their children. British residents in
Kowloon then started St. Andrew’s School on Kimberly Road in a
mat shed structure that, sadly, was blown away by a typhoon in
1896. In 1900, Mr Ho Tung (known as Sir Robert Ho Tung in 1915)
donated $15,000 to the government to construct a new school in
Kowloon. The site at 136 Nathan Road was granted and the
foundation stone was laid on 20 July 1900 by the Governor Sir Henry

Blake. The Kowloon British School was officially opened on 19 Apuril
1902.
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The school foundation ceremony was held on
20 July 1900 by the Governor Sir Henry Blake.
The foundation stone is preserved in-situ.
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The buiIding in the 1920s, with an additional classroom
structure on the left.

(Courtesy of King George V School)
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Exterior of the building in 1983
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The school building in 1989 as viewed from Kowloon Park.
Behind it is the new premises of the Tsim Sha Tsui District Kaifong
Welfare Association under construction.

(Courtesy of Information Services Department)
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In the beginning, the school was used as a primary school for some 60 pupils aged 5 to 15. It was run by Mr Benjamin
James, the first headmaster who had taught at Queen’s College, and his wife, with the help of a teacher for
handling the school work. The school expanded considerably, with additional classrooms being built since the
1920s. It was renamed the Central British School in 1923 and began taking in secondary students. The number of
students reached about 300 by the mid-1930s. To accommodate the increasing number of students, the school was

relocated to the new premises on Tin Kwong Road in Ho Man Tin on 14 September 1936, leaving the original building
vacant. The school was renamed King George V School on 30 April 1948.
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After World War I, the building was occupied by the Hong Kong Family Welfare Society. Since 1957, the site was
leased to the Tsim Sha Tsui District Kaifong Welfare Association to provide free schooling in the neighbourhood.
Following the free education policy announced by the government in 1971, the association changed to provide
primary school services to the community. Leisure and continuing education classes were also organized for adults
and the building housed clinics and other social facilities as well. In 1991, the association moved to the new premises
on the land immediately behind the site. After restoration in 1992, the building has housed the Antiquities and
Monuments Office.
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Exterior of the building in 1990
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Main entrance of the building in 1989
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The old school hall with its high ceiling to improve ventilation and
damp-proofing.
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The circular window on the second floor of the
southern wing
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Overview of the building showing its pitched roofs and chimney stacks.
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The former Kowloon British School is a typical Victorian style red-brick building designed by the well-known Hong
Kong architectural firm Messrs. Palmer and Turner. To adapt to the local sub-tropical hot and humid climate,
features with colonial characteristics such as wide verandahs, high ceilings and pitched roofs were added. The
school hall occupied the central portion of the building, while classrooms and teachers’ common rooms were on
either side. The headmaster’s room was on the first floor in the southern wing. At the back of the building was the
playground, which was constructed in 1914. Since its establishment in 1902, extensive alterations were made and
new blocks were added to provide more classrooms for the increasing number of students. The more recently
constructed wooden classroom building and the open playground at the back of the original site were demolished
and redeveloped for the Tsim Sha Tsui District Kaifong Welfare Association’s new premises.
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Wide verandahs to improve ventilation
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Present view of the southern wing of the school, with the

{5 18 B i & Restoration and Adaptive Re-use original wide verandans restored.
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When the Tsim Sha Tsui District Kaifong Welfare Association vacated the site in 1991, restorations were undertaken.
Most of the original structure, including its fittings such as the brickwork, granite slabs, fireplaces, wooden staircase,
and the wooden floorings, were restored and preserved as best as possible. Elements which were beyond repair
were replaced. Meanwhile, later additions were removed according to old records so as to reveal the original
building.
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Apart from the office, the school hall was reserved for exhibitions and other educational activities organized by the

Antiquities and Monuments Office. In 2005, the school hall was then used as an office after the Hong Kong Heritage
Discovery Centre was open.
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In 2014, the Antiquities and Monuments Office adopted advanced technology to remove the modern paintwork on
the brick surfaces and conduct desalination to the brickwork. After the removal of paint, dentist replacement to

seriously deteriorated red bricks and repair to mortar joints were carried out, so as to reveal the original appearance
of the brick walls.
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For more information on the facilities and services of the Antiquities and Monuments Office and the Hong Kong
Heritage Discovery Centre, please access our website: https.//www.amo.gov.hk or contact our staff at 2208 4488.
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The wooden staircase to the second floor with
its simple design is still preserved.
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View of the southern wing in 1989 before the
restoration
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Restoration in progress

RN IRREBBAC EHEENE -

e E5VRFTLF

The original fireplace in the

"= school hall is still in good condition.




